
 

 
Telephone Enquiries: Monica Bell, Democratic Services (01254) 380114 
Email:  monica.bell@hyndburnbc.gov.uk 
Published on Tuesday, 5th December 2017 

Page 1 of 2  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Licensing Sub Committee 
 
Thursday, 14 December 2017 at 4.00 pm, 
Scaitcliffe House, Ormerod Street, Accrington 
 
Membership 
 
Chair: Councillor Melissa Fisher 
 
Councillors Terry Hurn and Joyce Plummer 
 

 

A G E N D A 
 
 

1.   Apologies for Absence, Substitutions, Declarations of Interest and Dispensations   
 
 

2.   Minutes of  Last Meeting  (Pages 3 - 4) 
 
To submit the Minutes of the last meeting of the Licensing Sub-Committee held on 10th 
October 2017 for approval as a correct record. 

Recommended - That the Minutes be received and approved as a 
correct record. 

 

3.   Licensing Hearing Procedure  (Pages 5 - 10) 
 
To advise the Licensing Sub-Committee of the Council’s Hearing Procedure to be used in 
relation to hearings required under the Licensing Act 2003.  The Procedure is attached.  

Recommended - That the Procedure be noted. 

 
 

 

Public Document Pack



 

Page 2 of 2 

 

4.   Licensing Act 2003 Determination Hearing  -  Opium and Voodoo Lounge, Willow 
Street, Accrington  (Pages 11 - 58) 
 
To advise the Licensing Sub-Committee of an application for the review of a premises 
licence made under Section 51 of the Licensing Act 2003 by a responsible authority. 
 
The premises for which the review is sought is The Opium and Voodoo Lounge, Willow 
Street, Accrington. 

Recommended - That the Licensing Sub-Committee consider the 
application to review the premises licence for The 
Opium and Voodoo Lounge, Willow Street, Accrington 
made by the Executive Director (Legal and 
Democratic Services), Hyndburn Borough Council, on 
behalf of the Licensing Authority in its capacity of a 
responsible authority. 

 

 
 



 

 
86 

 
LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE 

 

 
Tuesday, 10th October, 2017 

 
Present:  Councillor Melissa Fisher (in the Chair), Councillors Terry Hurn and 

Joyce Plummer 
 

  

  

 
176 Apologies for Absence 

 
There were no apologies for absence. 
 

177 Declarations of Interest and Dispensations 
 
There were no declarations of interest or dispensations. 
 

178 Minutes of the Last Meeting 
 
The Minutes of the last meeting of the Licensing Sub-Committee held on 6th March 2017 
were submitted for approval as a correct record. 

Resolved - That the Minutes be received and approved as a correct 
record. 

 
179 Licensing Hearing Procedure 

 
The Licensing Sub-Committee was advised of the Council’s Conduct of Hearings 
Procedure which was to be used in relation to hearings required under the Licensing Act 
2003.   

Resolved - That the Procedure be received and noted. 
 

180 Licensing Act 2003 Determination Hearing  -  Great Harwood Cricket Club, Cliffe 
Park, Great Harwood, Nr. Blackburn, BB6 7PQ 
 
In accordance with the Hyndburn Borough Council Policy on the Conduct of Hearings and 
the Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) Regulations 2005, the Licensing Manager advised the 
Licensing Sub-Committee of an application for a variation of a premises licence in respect 
of the Great Harwood Cricket club, Cliffe Park, Great Harwood, Nr. Blackburn, BB6 7PQ 
and a report relating thereto was submitted.  The application, including the proposed 
operating schedule was attached as Appendix A to the report.  The current licence was 
attached as Appendix B to the report.  Additional information in the form of an Aerial Map of 
the Club and nearby premises and a Declaration of Statement made by the Club Chairman 
on behalf of the Club was submitted at the meeting following agreement to their 
consideration from all parties present.   
 
No representations had been received against the application from the Responsible 
Authorities.   
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 2.



 
 
 

 

 
87 

A valid representation had been received from ‘a other person’ and related to the licensing 
objective regarding the Prevention of Public Nuisance.  The representation was set out in 
Appendix C to the report.   
 
A plan of the original layout and an amended layout plan were attached to the report as 
Appendices D and E respectively. 
 
The applicant (Great Harwood Cricket Club.), together with a representative had been 
invited to attend the hearing and in that respect the applicant’s representative, Stuart Paul 
Maher (Club Chairman) was in attendance.   
 
The objector to the application had also been invited to attend and in that respect Ms. 
Vanessa Palmer was present.  The start of the meeting had been delayed for a period of 
ten minutes as the objector was not in attendance at the scheduled commencement time.   
 
The Sub-Committee considered the application and additional information, together with 
representations made by the applicant’s representative and the objector and prior to a 
formal decision being made, sought legal advice thereon. 
 
Decision of the Sub-Committee:- 

Resolved - That in accordance with Section 85 of the Licensing Act 
2003, and after considering the representations made by 
the applicant’s representative and the objector, the 
application for a variation of a premises licence in 
respect of the Great Harwood Cricket Club, Cliffe Park, 
Great Harwood be granted subject to the following 
amendment to the condition relating to the use of the 
area known as the ‘Terrace’:- 

  The external terrace will be closed to customers every 
day at 2230 hours and will not be used after that time.  
All customers must be asked to vacate the area and the 
doors to the terrace should be closed by 2230 hours to 
prevent customers going back out. 

    
 

 
 
 
 

Signed:…………………………………………… 
 

Date: …………….………………………………………… 
 

Chair of the meeting 
At which the minutes were confirmed 

 
 

Page 4



 - 1 - 

 
 
 
 

COPY OF THE LICENSING AUTHORITY’S                                     
‘CONDUCT OF HEARINGS PROCEDURES’ 

 
HYNDBURN BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 
LICENSING ACT 2003 

 
THE CONDUCT OF HEARINGS 

 
1. Application 

1.1 All hearings subject to the Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings Regulations) 2005 will be held 
in accordance with this procedure.  Schedule 1 details the hearings which are subject 
to this procedure. 

 
2. Time of Hearing  

2.1 Hearings will commence within the times illustrated in Column 2 of Schedule 1, and 
where the hearing is scheduled to take place on more than one day, it will take place 
on consecutive working days. 

 
2.2 Hearings will normally commence at 1.00 pm on the day of the hearing, but hearings 

may take place at other times at the discretion of the Chair of the Committee or Sub-
Committee appointed to hear the matter. 

 
3. Members of the Committee or Sub-Committee 

3.1 Where the full Licensing Committee sit to hear an application, the full Committee will 
sit, excluding a member who: 

a) has sat on a Planning Committee hearing in respect of the premises 
subject to, or concerned in the Licensing Act 2003 application and/or 

b) has a personal and prejudicial interest in the application and / or 
c) has become an interested party by representing the applicant or any 

interested party prior to the hearing. 
 

3.2 Where a Sub-Committee sit to hear an application, it will consist of 3 members of the 
full Committee and will exclude a member who: 

a) has sat on a Planning Committee hearing in respect of the premises 
subject to, or concerned in the Licensing Act 2003 application and/or 

b) has a personal and prejudicial interest in the application 
c) has become an interested party by representing the applicant or any 

interested party prior to the hearing. 
 

3.3 Members will act in accordance with the Licensing Act 2003. They will have received 
training under the Act and will also act in accordance with the relevant paragraphs of 
the Local Authority Co-coordinators of Regulatory Services Guidance on the Role of 
Elected Members in Relation to Licensing Committee Hearings under the Licensing 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3.



 - 2 - 

Act 2003, the Hyndburn Borough Council Member codes of conduct and the 
requirements of the Standards Board for England and Wales. 

 
4. Opening of a Hearing and Identifying Parties to the Hearing 

4.1 The Chair of the Committee or Sub-Committee will introduce the members of the 
Committee or Sub-Committee and will outline the brief purpose of the hearing, person 
or premises to which the hearing relates, and the legal authority under which the 
determination will be made. 

4.2 All parties to a hearing will have been given a Notice of Hearing and Information to 
accompany a Notice of Hearing, prior to the hearing. The party to the hearing receiving 
a Notice of Hearing is obliged to return a response notice stating whether: 

a) they intend to attend or be represented at the hearing 
b) they consider a hearing to be unnecessary 
c) they request permission for other persons (other than a representative) to appear 

at the hearing, and the points upon which that person may be able to give 
information or assistance. 

 
4.3 The Clerk to the Committee or Sub-Committee will identify in turn, each party to the 

hearing who is present, and in relation to that party, whether they: 
a) are represented, and if so, who by 
b) have given notice that they consider a hearing unnecessary 
c) have given notice that they wish to withdraw any representation   

 they have made 
d) have given written representations which are before the hearing 
e) have given notice that they seek permission to call any other persons (other than 

a representative) to appear at the hearing, and the points upon which that person 
may be able to give evidence on or assistance 

 
4.4 The Chair of the Committee or Sub- Committee will then, in turn, ask each party to the 

hearing who is present whether: 
a) they wish to verbally withdraw any representations they have made 
b) they intend to introduce any documentary or other information that they have not 

produced in advance of the hearing 
  
4.5 Where a party does intend to introduce any documentary or other information that they 

have not produced in advance of the hearing, the Chair of the Committee or Sub-
Committee will ask all other parties whether they consent to that evidence or 
information being introduced. If any party does object, that documentary or other 
information must not be introduced. 

 
4.6 The Committee or Sub-Committee will then consider any requests made to call other 

persons under Paragraph 4.3(e) above, and shall not unreasonably withhold any such 
permission, having ensured that Paragraph 4.5 above is not undermined by such 
persons.   

 
4.7 The Clerk to the Committee or Sub-Committee will identify in turn, each party to the 

hearing who is not present at the hearing and in relation to that party will clarify: 
a) whether there is evidence that they were given Notice of the Hearing  
b) whether that party has given notice that they intend to attend or be represented 
c) whether that party has given notice that they consider a hearing to be 

unnecessary 
d) whether that party has given notice that they wish to withdraw their 

representation 
 
4.8 Where a party has given notice that they do not intend to attend or be represented, the 

Committee or Sub- Committee will state whether they intend to proceed in the absence 
of that party.  

      

Page 6



 - 3 - 

4.9 Where a party has not given such notice has failed to attend or be represented, the 
Committee or Sub-Committee will then decide whether it is necessary in the public 
interest to adjourn the hearing to a specified date or hold the hearing in the party’s 
absence. The Committee or Sub-Committee may invite representations from parties 
present on this issue before making their decision. 

 
4.10 The Committee or Sub-Committee, should it decide to proceed must subsequently 

consider the application, representation or notice made by a party who does not 
attend, attaching the appropriate weight of evidence to it. 

 
5. Hearings to be Held in Public 

5.1 The hearing shall take place in public although a member of the public, unless a party 
to the hearing a representative of a party, or a person mentioned under Paragraph 
4.3(e) above, shall not be entitled to address the hearing. 

 
5.2 The Chair of the Committee or Sub-Committee will invite any applications from parties 

present in relation to whether it is in the public interest to exclude the public from all or 
part of a hearing. 

 
5.3 Where there are such representations, they will be heard in public and following these, 

the Committee or Sub-Committee will decide whether the public interest in excluding 
the public outweighs the public interest in the hearing, or that part of the hearing taking 
place in public.  

 
5.4 Where there are no representations under Paragraph 5.3, then subject to Paragraph 

7.8, the whole of the hearing will take place in public. Where there are representations, 
the Committee or Sub-Committee decision and reasons for it will be given in public, 
and the Committee or Sub-Committee will also state whether any party or any persons 
assisting or representing a party are to be treated as a member of the public for this 
purpose. 

 
6. Commencement of the Hearing 

6.1 The Chair will explain the procedures that it will follow at the hearing. In particular the 
Chair will clarify that: 

a) the hearing will take the form of a discussion led by the Committee or Sub-
Committee and cross-examination will not be permitted unless the Committee or 
Sub-Committee considers that cross examination is required for it to consider the 
representations, application or notice as the case may require. 

b) members of the Committee or Sub-Committee may ask a question of any party 
or other person appearing at the hearing. 

c) members of the Committee or Sub-Committee may take into account 
documentary or other information produced to the authority before the hearing in 
support of their application, representation or notice. These have been provided 
to the Committee or Sub-Committee members by the Licensing Manager and 
need not be repeated at the hearing. 

d) members of the Committee or Sub-Committee may take into account any new 
documentary or other information produced to the authority at the hearing with 
the consent of all other parties (if any) and need not be repeated verbally at the 
hearing. 

e) parties will be allocated a maximum equal period to exercise their rights. The 
Chair will clarify what that time will be and when calculating that time will take 
account of the number of other persons who have been given permission to 
speak under Paragraph 4.3(e) above. 

f) parties will be allowed to clarify points upon which they wish to support their 
application. 

g) parties may seek permission to question any other party subject to Paragraph a) 
above. 

h) parties may seek permission to address the Committee or Sub-Committee. 

Page 7



 - 4 - 

 
 
 
 

7. Procedure 

7.1 The Licensing Manager (or his representative) will not be a party to the hearing. The 
Manager will outline the facts of the application and relevant representations received 
from parties. 

 
7.2 The Licensing Manager will then outline the legislation under which a determination is 

required. 
 
7.3 The Licensing Manager will outline: 

a) Relevant parts of the Act 
b) Relevant subordinate legislation 
c) Relevant sections from the statutory guidance made under Section 182 of the 

Act. 
d) Relevant paragraphs of the Statement of Licensing Policy made under Section 5 

of the Act. 
e) The time limit in which the Committee or Sub-Committee must make a 

determination under the law. 
 

7.4 The Licensing Manager or Licensing Authority Solicitor will advise the Committee or 
Sub-Committee but will not make recommendations or be part of the determination 
process. They will not retire with the Committee or Sub-Committee members for the 
purposes of a determination. The Licensing Authority Solicitor may at the request of 
the Chairman of the Committee or Sub Committee advice the Committee or Sub 
Committee whilst it is considering its decision. 

 
7.5 Each party to the hearing present will then in turn provide information supporting or 

clarifying their representations. Each party can at this time seek to exercise their rights 
under Paragraph 6 above. 

 
7.6 At the conclusion of hearing, the Committee or Sub-Committee may advise all parties 

of details of representations they have received from parties not present and the 
weight they intend to attach to that evidence or representation. 

 
7.7 The Committee or Sub-Committee will disregard any information given by a party or 

any other person to whom permission to appear at the hearing has been given which 
is not relevant to ; 

 
a) their application, representation or notice or in the case of another person, the 

application, representation or notice of the party requesting their appearance, 
and 

b) the promotion of the Licensing Objectives 
 

 or in the case of a hearing to consider a notice given by a chief officer of police, the 
crime prevention objective only. 

 
7.8 At any time during the hearing the Committee or Sub Committee may exercise the 

right to exclude the public and the parties from the hearing where it considers that the 
public interest in so doing outweighs the public interest in the hearing, or that part of 
the hearing, taking place in public.   

 
8 Persons behaving in a disruptive manner 

8.1 The Committee or Sub-Committee may require any person attending the hearing who 
in their opinion is behaving in a disruptive manner to leave the hearing and may: 

 

Page 8



 - 5 - 

a) refuse to permit that person to return, or 
b) permit them to return only on such conditions as the Committee or Sub-

Committee may specify 
 
 but such a person may, before the end of the hearing, submit to the authority in writing 

any information, which they would have been entitled to give orally had they not been 
required to leave.  

 
9.        Adjournment of Hearing 

9.1 The Committee or Sub-Committee may adjourn a hearing to a specified date or 
arrange for the hearing to be held on specified additional dates where it considers this 
necessary to consider any representations or notice made by a party. 

 
9.2 It will not adjourn a hearing in such a way to create an effect on the requirements of 

granting or rejecting an application under Schedule 8 of the Act or a review under 
Section 167 of the Act. 

 
10 Determinations 

10.1 The Committee or Sub-Committee will make its determination at the conclusion of the 
hearing but in restricted circumstances may make a determination within a period of 5 
working days of the last day of the hearing. 

 
11 Notice of Determination 

11.1 The Clerk to the Committee or Sub-Committee will issue a notice of determination 
forthwith to all parties. 

 
12 Record of Proceedings 

      The Clerk to the Committee will provide for a record of the hearing to be taken in a 
permanent and intelligible form and kept for 6 years from the date of determination. 

SCHEDULE 1 

Column 1  Column 2  

Provision under which hearing is 
held.  

Period of time within which hearing must be 
commenced.  

1.  Section 18(3)(a) 
(determination of application 
for premises licence).  

20 working days beginning with the day after the end 
of the period during which representations may be 
made as prescribed under section 17(5)(c).  

2.  Section 31(3)(a) 
(determination of application 
for a provisional statement).  

20 working days beginning with the day after the end 
of the period during which representations may be 
made as prescribed under section 17(5)(c) by virtue of 
section 30.  

3.  Section 35(3)(a) 
(determination of application to 
vary premises licence).  

20 working days beginning with the day after the end 
of the period during which representations may be 
made as prescribed under section 17(5)(c) by virtue of 
section 34(5).  

4.  Section 39(3)(a) 
(determination of application to 
vary premises licence to 
specify individual as premises 
supervisor).  

20 working days beginning with the day after the end 
of the period within which a chief officer of police may 
give notice under section 37(5).  

5.  Section 44(5)(a) 
(determination of application 
for transfer of premises 
licence).  

20 working days beginning with the day after the end 
of the period within which a chief officer of police may 
give notice under section 42(6).  

Page 9



 - 6 - 

6.  Section 48(3)(a) (cancellation 
of interim authority notice 
following police objection).  

5 working days beginning with the day after the end of 
the period within which a chief officer of police may 
give notice under section 48(2).  

7.  Section 52(2) (determination of 
application for review of 
premises licence).  

20 working days beginning with the day after the end 
of the period during which representations may be 
made as prescribed under section 51(3)(c).  

8.  Section 72(3)(a) 
(determination of application 
for club premises certificate).  

20 working days beginning with the day after the end 
of the period during which representations may be 
made as prescribed under section 71(6)(c).  

Column 1  Column 2  

Provision under which hearing is 
held.  

Period of time within which hearing must be 
commenced.  

9.  Section 85(3) (determination of 
application to vary club 
premises certificate).  

20 working days beginning with the day after the end 
of the period during which representations may be 
made as prescribed under section 71(6)(c) by virtue of 
section 84(4).  

10.  Section 88(2) (determination of 
application for review of club 
premises certificate).  

20 working days beginning with the day after the end 
of the period during which representations may be 
made as prescribed under section 87(3)(c).  

11.  Section 105(2)(a) (counter 
notice following police 
objection to temporary event 
notice).  

7 working days beginning with the day after the end of 
the period within which a chief officer of police may 
give a notice under section 104(2).  

12.  Section 120(7)(a) 
(determination of application 
for grant of personal licence).  

20 working days beginning with the day after the end 
of the period within which the chief officer of police 
may give a notice under section 120(5).  

13.  Section 121(6)(a) 
(determination of application 
for the renewal of personal 
licence).  

20 working days beginning with the day after the end 
of the period within which the chief officer of police 
may give a notice under section 121(3).  

14.  Section 124(4)(a) (convictions 
coming to light after grant or 
renewal of personal licence).  

20 working days beginning with the day after the end 
of the period within which the chief officer of police 
may give a notice under section 124(3).  

15.  Section 167(5)(a) (review of 
premises licence following 
closure order).  

10 working days beginning with the day after the day 
the relevant licensing authority receives the notice 
given under section 165(4).  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 10



 - 1 - 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
 

1.1 The purpose of this report is to consider an application for the review of the 
premises licence relating to the Opium and Voodoo Lounge, Willow Street 
Accrington Lancashire, following the submission of an application under section 51 
of the Licensing Act 2003 (“the Act”) by a responsible authority. 

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 

 

2.1 That the Committee consider the application to review the premises licence for the 
Opium and Voodoo Lounge, Willow Street, Accrington made by the Executive 
director of Legal and Democratic Services, Hyndburn Borough Council on behalf of 
the licensing authority in its capacity of a responsible authority. 

 
3. INFORMATION  
 

3.1 Application for a new premise licence was received in June 2011from Mr Michael 
Cookson and the licence was granted on the 27th July 2011. 

  

3.2 Since the initial grant of the licence there have been several applications received 
for the variation of the designated supervisor (DPS). The current DPS is Ms Victoria 
Rita Tarren. She has been the DPS since 17th May 2016.   

 
3.3 The Opium and Voodoo Lounge is situated on Willow Street Accrington. The 

premises benefits from the following licensable activities:- 
 

 Performance of live music  

 Playing of recorded music  

 Entertainment of a similar description to that falling within a performance of 
live music, any playing of recorded music or a performance of dance. 

 A performance of dance  

 Late Night Refreshment and  

 the Supply of alcohol for consumption on and off the premises.  
 
 All of the above activities are permitted Monday to Sunday from noon to 0500 
 hours. 

 

TITLE:      APPLICATION FOR REVIEW OF PREMISES LICENCE UNDER 
SECTION 53C OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003  

 
 

TO:-  LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE  
 
DATE:  THURSDAY, 14TH DECEMBER 2017  
 
AT:  QUEEN ELIZABETH ROOM SCAITCLIFFE HOUSE 
             
BY:  LICENSING MANAGER ON BEHALF OF THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 

(LEGAL AND DEMOCRATIC SERVICES) (EXT 2146)     

 

Page 11

Agenda Item 4.



 - 2 - 

A copy of the current licence is attached at Appendix 1 and the street map location 
at Appendix 1A. 
 

3.4 On 31st October 2017 an application for the review of the premises licence pursuant 
to section 51 of the Act was received from the Executive Director of Legal and 
Democratic Services, Hyndburn Borough Council on behalf of the Licensing 
Authority in its role of responsible authority.  The ground for the review is that the 
licensing objectives relating to the prevention of crime and disorder has not been 
promoted at the premises as a result of irresponsible drinks promotions that are 
taking place at the premises.  A copy of the review application is attached at 
Appendix 2. 

 
3.6 The application for the review of the licence highlights various drinks promotions 

that have taken place at the premises that have undermined the licensing objectives 
in relation to crime and disorder and are in breach of a mandatory licence condition 
as set out below:- 

 
 Irresponsible drinks promotions – Mandatory Condition 
 
 3. (1) The responsible person must ensure that staff on relevant premises do not carry 

 out, arrange or participate in an irresponsible promotions in relation to the premises 
 
   (2)  In this paragraph an irresponsible drinks promotion means any or one or more of 

 the following activities, or substantially similar activities, carried on for the purpose 
 of encouraging the sale or supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises – 

   
(a)  Games or other activities which require or encourage, or are designed to require or 

 encourage, individuals to – 
  
(i) Drink a quantity of alcohol within a limited time (other than to drink alcohol sold or 

supplied on the premises before the cessation of the period in which the 
responsible person is authorised to sell alcohol), 
 

(ii) Drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or not) 
 

(b)  Provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a fixed or 
 discounted fee to the public or to a group defined by a particular characteristic in a 
 manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing objective; 
 

(c)  Provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other think as a prize to encourage or 
 reward the purchase and consumption of alcohol over a period of 24 hours or less 
 in a manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing objective; 

 
(d)  Selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional posters or flyers on, or 

 in the vicinity of, the premises which can reasonably be considered to condone, 
 encourage or glamorise anti-social behaviour or refer to the effects of drunkenness 
 in any favourable manner. 

 

3.7 Full details are set out in the application for review, as well as details in relation to 
attempts to mediate with the DPS by the licensing manager and  the police ad 
evidence of flyers and advertisements that have been placed on Facebook. 

 
 

Page 12



 - 3 - 

 
 
 
 
4.0 Advertisement 
 
4.1 The Licensing Authority advertised the application for review of the premises 

licence at the Scaitcliffe House, Town Hall, on the Council’s website and on the 
premises itself in accordance with The Licensing Act 2003 (Premises Licences and 
Club Premises Certificates) Regulations 2005.  

 
4.2 Responsible Authorities and other persons were invited to make representations in 

respect of the application for the review of the premises licence by 28th November 
2017. 

 
4.3 A representation was received from the Lancashire Constabulary in its capacity as 

responsible authority.  The police representation sets out a series of crime and 
disorder incidents that have taken place at the premise since the drinks promotion 
was first discussed with the DPS in August 2017. The representation is attached to 
this report at Appendix 3. 

 
4.4 Since the representation was received from the police a further email which showed 

a screenshot of the premises Facebook page advertising yet another drinks 
promotion was forwarded to the licensing manager by Jason Middleton who is the 
police licensing sergeant for Hyndburn.  The email is attached to this report at 
Appendix 3A. 

 
5. Implications 
 
5.1 The Act at section 52(2) and (3) states that, before determining the application, the 

licensing authority must hold a hearing to consider it and any relevant 
representations.  It must, having regard to the application and any relevant 
representations, take such steps mentioned in section 52 (4) (if any) as it considers 
necessary for the promotion of the licensing objectives. 

 
5.2 The steps referred to in paragraph 6.1 above are:- 
 
 a) to modify the conditions of the licence; 
 
 b) to exclude a licensable activity from the scope of the licence; 
  
 c) to remove the designated premises supervisor  
 
 d) to suspend the licence for a period not exceeding three months; 
 

e) to revoke the licence;  
 
and for this purpose the conditions of the licence are  modified if any of them is 
altered or omitted or any new condition is added. 

 
5.3 Where the licensing authority takes a step mentioned at a) or b) in paragraph 5.2 

above in relation to the review, it may provide that the modification or exclusion is to 
have effect for only such period (not exceeding three months) as it may specify. 

Page 13



 - 4 - 

 
5.4 Any party to the hearing has the right of appeal to Lancashire Magistrates’ Court 

following the determination of the review under section 52 of the Act. 
 

 
For further information on the details of this report, please contact: 
Wendy Peck, Licensing Manager, Hyndburn Borough Council. Tel 01254 388111 
 

Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Representation made by a responsible Authority in support of an application 

for the review of an existing Premises Licence 

 

Responsible Authority making representation 

Lancashire Police 

PS Jason Middleton 

01254 353625 

 

Name of Applicant who requested a review of this licence 

Executive Director of Legal and Democratic Services on behalf of Hyndburn Borough Council 

 

Premises Details 

Opium and Voodoo Lounge  

Willow Street 

Accrington 

BB5 1LP 

 

Details of your representation in support of the review application  

 

This supporting representation is brought on behalf of the Chief Constable of Lancashire 

Constabulary.   

The information provided in the application is agreed by Lancashire Police and we fully support the 

application and the reasoning for it. We share the concerns regarding what can be described as an 

Irresponsible Drinks Promotions at the premises and the apparent increase in crime & disorder that 

can be linked to this promotion.  

Since the meeting was held at the premises on the 10th August 2017 to discuss the All-Inclusive 

Drinks Promotions and the concerns of the Police and Local Authority were raised, the following 

incidents of crime & disorder have been reported to the Police. 

 

 

Page 53



Saturday 26th August 2017 at 5.32am – Crime reference ED1714024 

Ambulance called to an 18 year old male victim who states unknown offender has entered into a 

fight with him after both have consumed alcohol and victim has been punched to the face causing 

injury to lip which required stitches.   

Sunday 10th September 2017 at 2am – Crime reference ED1714829 

Male, whilst in Voodoo, punched to the left eye causing bruising and swelling. Victim was asked to 

leave club and was followed outside by offender who then punched him again. 

Saturday 16th September at 4.44am – Incident reference LC-20170916-0340 

Call to Police from a male who stated he had been assaulted in Voodoo but then states that’s not the 

main issue. He states that they are doing cocaine and other drugs. Call taker states the male was 

evidently intoxicated when being spoken to.  

Saturday 23rd September 2017 at 1.17am – Incident reference LC-20170923-0094 

Two separate reports of a drink fuelled argument in Voodoo which resulted in two women fighting 

with each other. One received a lump to the head and another grazes to her knees and elbows. 

Saturday 30th September 2017 at 2.58am – Incident reference LC-20170930-0202 

Female reports that whilst she was in Voodoo she was pushed over by another female and then 

dragged by the hair. Female recalls a few hours later to say she was very drunk and it all seemed 

worse whilst she was intoxicated. 

Saturday 30th September 2017 at 4.34am – Incident reference LC-20170930-0285 

Ambulance contact Police to report an unconscious 18 year old female who had passed out because 

of too much drink. At the same time there were reports of someone being bottled at the same 

location. This resulted in a female being arrested after its alleged she hit another female in the face 

with a glass bottle whilst in Voodoo. 

Saturday 14th October 2017 at 1.33am – Crime reference ED1716962   

Reports of large scale disorder outside Voodoo involving 10 people had just been in the premises. 

One female in particular was a concern and Ambulance were called and the female had to be taken 

to hospital because of the Ambulance crews concerns regarding her excessive alcohol consumption. 

This female later contacts Police after she’s released from hospital stating she was also assaulted at 

the time of this incident. Comment from one of the officers who dealt with this incident (received by 

email) - They had all been inside Voodoo in the dance  floor, which is where it had started, it then 

spilled out onto the street and the group were dispersed a few times over the next 30 minutes. One 

girl in particular was absolutely paralytic and ended up going to hospital, partly because she was 

faking unconsciousness but mostly because she was so very very drunk. 

 

Page 54



A yearly comparison for the same period (between August 26th & October 14th) for 2015 and 2016 

shows that Lancashire Police were called on three occasions in 2016 and one occasion in 2015 for 

incidents that can be classed as alcohol related crime & disorder and can be linked to Voodoo on 

Willow Street. Therefore it can be clearly evidenced that incidents of crime & disorder have 

significantly increased at these premises. 

  

Further to the meeting held at the premises on the 10th August 2017. On Saturday 14th October 2017 

I emailed the Designated Premises Supervisor – Victoria Tarren – with my concerns regarding the 

recent incidents at the premises (email detailed in the application) but did not get a reply. I followed 

this up with a further email on the 17th October 2017 but disappointedly I have still have not had a 

response. 

 

Submitted for your consideration. 

 

 

Jason Middleton 

Licensing Sergeant 

East Division – Lancashire Police 

Page 55



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 57



Page 58


	Agenda
	2. Minutes of  Last Meeting
	3. Licensing Hearing Procedure
	4. Licensing Act 2003 Determination Hearing  -  Opium and Voodoo Lounge, Willow Street, Accrington
	Appendix 1  -  Opium and Voodoo Lounge
	Appendix 1A - Opium and Voodoo Lounge
	Appendix 2  -  Opium and Voodoo Lounge
	Appendix 3 - Opium and Voodoo Lounge
	Appendix 3A


